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Sketoh of rames ysland, South Carolina.

James Island, situated on Charlaston Harbour, represented by
the map appended, was once called Boone's Island (J,0ldmixon Vol,
I., p. 513.): it was probably called by its present name (Jaues )
Island) by the Dutch settlers, who located there .w: from New York, °
after the proprietor of that province, James, Duke of ¥ork, who
aftervards mounted the throne.as James II, the other side of Ashley
River being named after his brother, Charles II, King of England.
The island .is incidentally nmentioned by some of the writers on
Carolina, viz, Hew&: Vol. I. p. 73 & 4 also ,on page 142 bwrying ‘
of the dead on J.Isld. from the fcotch ship 'Rising Sun'of the fam-
ous Darien expedition., page 158~ Cotton plantlng.,p. 179 port John=-
son was built, and 182,3 &5 French landed on James’ Island and hna%t
houses; Capt. Drake was in command of the J.I. company. P. dgg‘

Rivers' 'Toplcs' locates James town*on south side of
Creek, Mills' Statistics appendxx mentions 'Casor’ granted by \
Indien chief; James I, may be in the grant (?) -- also 230,1.- in
1776 fort1;1catlou of Fort Johnson. 91 Garden's anecdoies. ‘
243 Ramssy Vol. %. 270 do. do., 309 do. do. 1779, 321 do. do. 1780,
326 do. Vol. II,, 15 Vol, I, pragton's M., 37 same, 53 & 294 sama, ,
56 &7 Drayton's Vlew of 5.C., 5 Tarlton's Campaigns, 11 Farleon's
Campaigns, 245 Simms’Hist. of S.C., 339 Dalcho. chapel 1'?333 &c &e.
James Island is about nine ( 9) miles long from Minott's ferw
ry on Wappoo Creek to Fort Johnson, and is about three or four
broad, It is intersected with small salt water creeks that run
some distance into the highland, ending in bays or galils that
gpring fresh water and thus a sort of natural drainage went on and

forests some of which still remeined before 1861 were of tha finw
est growth of pine, (not long leaf) oak, hzckory and dogwogd, the’
first being used for . fuel and rails for worm fencing,
the latter for shafts &c., while beech and poplar beautified the
wooda, whi the denser parts wmg=peomied-widh wild turkey and
wood ~co deer were known in the recollec¢tion of tne wr1ter
which extends back to 1840,)

The remains of the aborigines can now {1388) be found all

periwinkle shells show what their principal food was. The only
work of theirs of a notable character is to be found on Dr, Thomas
Lagareé’s place now owned by Mr Robert Bee, not thirty yards from
the upper waters of a ghallow ¢reek that runs between Batteries
Cheves and Haskell and within three hundred yards of the Three
trees Y v two miles .from Fort Johnson; Drayton describes
it, also, Tuomey. It is somewhat circular and is as D. says, 240
paces in circumference. The shells above mentioned composs it
entirely, interspersed with deer bones and horns mixed with quan- :
tities of ashes and fragments of broken clay pottery. Arrow~heads -
are found in the adjacent fields, and once a tomahawk now in the
Charleston museum, a neck. ornament of shall circular iu form, .with :
two small holes neatly drilled through it, was found near, and is
now in the collection of Col. C.C.Jones of Augusta Ga.
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nogrows in great sbundance and seems to love the
salt water, is 1s from this shrub that th2 Indians
ano 2a or Black Drink ( see Lawson) and it ye* may
Be made & subsvityte o ninesas i 5 it i %
be rude o subsiipic TonEhiness ton xa it reseubles it in hoih ¢ zz
= : c phodd Le alio wer or 54
¥ndigo was vlanted yesrs ago as the beads 4f that plant once
. groun over with lavge pines testify, now cheared by the devastat-
i ing rand of the war of 1S861.
The bluck se:d or long staple cotion became profitable and
sold in the early part of the century for {#1.00) one dollar per
ib, ©y lint, sone 20 or 30 years after it went down to i7c¢te. and )
' rose ©ill in 1860 it fetched 30 to 60 cenis, agcording to quality, S8 0)
after she war of 1565 it sold for “$2:00 two=derters per »ound on (| /&
aczcount of its secarcity and now in 1838 it ranges from 2% to 40
centz,
Prior %p 1850 every planter lived on his plantation during the
winter’ tm the Q0th of every May he moved to Fort Johnson or Se=
ceasionville for health and returned on the 10th Yov, when it was
corsidcsrad safe fimm fever: before 1825 Cole's Island at the mouin
of Stone River was used as a awrmer resort, but after about that
date it wos discontinued and Fort Johnson was settled by them,
In 1851 2 few of the plaanters, some five or six in number, .
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tarted 2 new swmer settlement at Stent's Point owned by® “F&t B, /-
Seabrock Esg., S0 as to be nearer their plantations and called 1t
ecesxiornville, the political agitations of the day (1831) sug-
gesting the name, It was there that a battle was fought in the
sumeer of 18262 end it is hoped that a monument will yet be erected
to the renory of the brave defenders of their country who fell
there for Southsin Liberty, a cause now unhappily extinguished.
Trere were some twenty five nouses -of Fort Johnson and five ——
at Saceszionville, all of the former were destroyed by the "confed-.
grata engineers, being in the wey of their fortifications, and the
1gtter were pruch injured by the shells from the United 3tates bat-
teries om Lawton's Long Island. There were also fully thirty (30)
dwelling heuses on the nlaniations,. besides gin houseg, bams and
negiro houses with whieh all were provided, {lir. W.B,geabrook had a
steam ginning mill) all of which were destroyed during the war by
the -¢onfederate soldiers in sheer wantonness, except siy (6) which
g are desipgnated on the map by green dots, viz.g lMessers wm.W.McLeo?,
Ve Bdwerd preer’s {(8r.); R=Swiwtenlts; V.W.Lawton s known as Cuthberi’s
E.M.Cla»k's and Mrs. M.S.H.Godber's now owned by W, s, Hinson Esqe
and known as Stile's Point; three houses were saved in a damaged
econdition at Secessionville, viz., belonging to Ed. ¥icer Sr., Esg.
and V,.5,52abrook Esq. : )
The following were most of the residents of the Island prior
tc or auout 1860, viz., Dr, E,M,Burch, J.B. Hinson Esq, Captain E,
M,3lavk, Tr, R,Lebby,Rev. Jno. Douglas, Presp¥terian minister, Mrs.
M:8,. 1, godhar, Dr, T{tegaré; Winborn Lawton Esq., W.W.Lawton Esaq., —
James M, Iewton Esq, B.F.Minott Esq. Rev. Stiles Mellichaup, Rect=
or of St. James Church ( Protestant Episcopal :); Joseph M,Mikell
Esq., Dr, ASneus Mikell, W.W.Leod Esq. Josiah McLeod Esq. Jno. Me= .-
v L20C Fsq. Oress—Keys Royall Esq., Captain Reildns-Rivers, Capt.
Z Jno. Rivars, Blijan Rivers Esq., Constant Rivers Esq., Boyner Tay=
ior Tsqy James Witter Esq., Josish, Taylor Esg. Capt. Francis Rive~
erz ¥sai, +he nbove lived in summer at Fort Johnson; the follow=
ing n% Gecessionville,- Ed. Hearnel Freer Jr., Edward Freer Sr.,
Thomas’ Qriwball, ¢,w,zills, Horace: Rivers, and Wm. B. Seabrook Esqrs.
The T:liowing lived in "town® ({Chsirleston) T.S.Heyward, Sol.
Leperd, Jarmes Holree,Beqrs., Hon. fW,.J.@rayson.
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In addition to the planters' residdnoes at Port Johnson in

1860 the United States had a garrigson barrack and mmgazine there,

all very substantially built of brieck aZso & Mart{llo Tower*abouil

a quarter of a mile to the south’ all taken down or destroyed dur-

ing the war of 1861 to 65.(*Autt sftin 127, fo e 76 Clmlostin fomr Bevf, /5,5 .

On the plantations many fine houges had been eracted. They
were almost all of wood except a few o0ld ones, Mr, K James M.Lawion's
on Stono River, Rev. Nr,  Millichamp’s and Mr, J.B,HinsonsQOrange
grove Place and at Harvey's, also Jas, M.Mikell. '

Besides Long staple or black seed cotton produced prior to .-
1860 there was what is now called garden truck, consisting of water
and Musk Melons, Tomatoes, Ocia, ground nuts, Irish potatoes, green
peas, beans, squashes, cabbages and turnips which with sweet pot~-
atoes - wore raised for the Charleston market as well as for home
comsumption. Bejgdes these, Clay peas and Indian flint corn (Maize)
were produced, as the principal food supply for the negro slaves
as well as for stock and was used also by the owners. No fodder
from grass to speak of was cured, but the blades of indian corn %

... wren dried made an excellent substitute for hay. Mules were sel-
com. or never reared but all of the planters attended to- the breed-
ing of horses, which was nuch improved by that fine stallion *Duroc"
owned by Mr, Horace Rivers. These horses were not as large as

the Kentuckgy horses but being thoroughly acclimated were tougher
than the imported animals. It is regretted that noxne of that fine
stock remains today, war being such a destroyer. It may be well
to mention that all also reared that admirable little beast the
"tackey" in numbers, but the two nust not be confounded as the

last was mucn smaller zand was too weak for the cart or the plow.
Sheep were not generally attended to but a few did have them.

The labors of the planters in the fields were diversified at
slack seasons of the year by sport; partriges, doves as well as
woodcock and wild turkeys were to be feund in more or less numbers.
The chasing of the fox and wild cat were also favorite amusementg
during the winter, while in the summer after laying by of the crop
in July or August a maroon or picknick wag usually made up to go
to Bird Key at the mouth of Stono River where fishing in the surf
for young bass and black drum was enjoyed, while those not so robust
preferred fishing for whiting and sheepshead from a boat. Some-
times these fishing parties were added to by the attendance of the
ladies. Whenever that was ithe case, a house on porris Island was
chosen where dancing made it more enjoyable. (There was a village
of five or six houses there owned by Charlestonians).

James Island in those days was truly a happy place, there wers
no jare or fguds of any consequence, as are s0 common in small com-
‘manities, to distract and divide the place. All were on a soclal
equality and were as one family as it was observed once by & vis-
itor. They were a simple people in their tqatea and customs but
gentle in their manners and virtuous withall. The preseni gener=
ation does not recall a duel to have been fought by e residvnt of
the Island-a custom common in many parts of the country at that
time. '

All of the planters of the Island owned canoes built of two
or three pieces of cypresa. Some few built them themselves with
their own - 4. carpenters {negro slaves) and used them as market

and fishing boats. They were boyant and lasting and fast when
once under way; sails were seldom used, oars being depended on for
propulsion, of which the boat often carried ten to.fifteen. Capt.
X.M,.Clark was very expert and built several very fine race boais
that took part in the regattas near Charleston, about the yearl854.




11,0
Mr, Vi, =#,0ecbirovk, a gentleman of a wonderful mechanical iarn
build szv.ral, but they were of a more substantial kind; ifr, Zdward
i ITirae Teser Jr, also built boats. At the races the negro
slaves vere wiwe oarsmen and took as much delight as their masters
in this exciting sport as well as in fishing, so well described by
the Mon. v r pirargou once a resident and landowner on the Island
in the 'witcling sud the Slave' es well as by William Ellioi= in
hiz 'Caolina @ro.sts

50 much  has been written pro and cecon on ' " sglavery Srat it
ray be well Lo sary nothing on that subject, but our experience w28
that witn some few exceptions, the slaves were happy, far hannier

than they are now, being so unfitted by their former education to
compete on an equality with a far more aggressive, energetic cond
wily rcee. Be 21l this as it may, it is to be hoped that uhin the
world recovers from its "insanity" on the subject of Africun Slave-
ery that an impartiacl posterity will adjudge it fairly zcnd cerrect=-
1y =2n1d tae oid glisva=holdsrs will not be slandered =nd ubused as

it is the faol.icn now a-Jzavs 40 do.

. To the »rolue2 of ithe plantation wes pided the produce o1 the
ocean and erc2i whieh rade the cozst a place of bounty and happie
ness, znd now helps meny to live confortebly. The cookery orf the
0old South wes jus:ily celebrated we think and no where were dishes

betilsr pregpured thon here. The roast turiey of Xmas, the noted
brickcver:- - yaus besidew shrimps, oysters, conchs salt water and
yellow~iLe2llied gooters (terrapins) and palmetto cabbage were dalicw-
acies peculiar to our coast regions, prepared by ow African cuok,
were gowd enough to rival the dishes described .:, well by W.Gilmore
Sirmms of that famous epicure and gourmand, Porgy. R
The particularg of preparation &e¢ given by Miss Pinckny in herad=-
mirable weork "The Carolina youse VWife® treats of all these dishes
as special Zo our section, which are*hieroglyphies to any one but
a Sea Islander®,

The churecnes on James Island were both destroyed by fire dur-
ing the war of 1865. A Virginia regiment [probably of Wise's
brigade P,A,C,s,) were encemped just south west of the Presbyterian
chureh (Rev. Jno. Douglas of Chester, S.C. Pastor) in a clump of
pines that stood there and being ordered to march, with the reck-
lessness du-ini—difference of all soldiersg, they set fire to the

srall board or log houses in whiech they had been living. The fire ™"

soon corrunicated to the treeg and from them to the roof of the
church; it was then that the writer who was at the Artillsry Cross
Road about half a mile to the east, firat saw it, not larger than
a few Teet in diameter, it soon spread and the building was con-e
sumed, without any effort being rmde by the soldiers ( as far as
was seen) io #eri the flames. This was in 1864 as well as can be
recollected, This chureh was partially built and was not complet-
ed until 1846,8 or 9., It was a wooden building and was 2 fine
structure witn a Dorie portico fronting the road, was finely fir-

ished, the Jonn's Island Prespyterian Church ( it is said) havig-

er a few fzei to the west® much more modest and said to be very
old wiich was taken down when the oiher wes finished. The present
chvreh _ -+ +_z* ihe third (3rd.) that we know to have been
built on the spot was erected in 1867 or 8. The grave yard adjec-
ent dates back to 1763 and was only used for white people. )

S%, James Church, Protestant Episcopal, of which Rev. Stilles
Meliichamp was rector was also burnt during the w of 1861. Tba
Rev.W.H.Ceapbell of St, Peul's Ch. Charleston S.C. told the writer
that ke wns an officer in the gonfederate army and being encampe§
on Jemes Islend he observed that the church was in danger from fire
dirss=cd some soldiers to protdct it. They returned and reported

it em®e., That night the fire breakine out afresh it was burned

/f_ ‘)having been used &s a model,. Beigdes this church there wzs anoth=-
?
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down. This was probably in 1864, &

It was wooden tastefully Suilt in the gothic style in about
the year 1853 or 54. It was at this very time that the old
church or chapel was pulled down, it stood but a few yarda to the
north of the one that was burned in the war; it was surrounded by
a splendid grove of live oaks festooned with gray moss that swept
the grave yard and gave to the whole a fine effect. The burial
ground dates back to 1769 and was only used for white people,
negroes have been and are still buried agjacent, just beyond the
hedge to the north. 1o church has been erected on the spot up to
the present time 1888A.D. but the corporation posseses a fund and
it may yet be done. The site of the old church is on the camp
road not yuch beyond a quarter of a mile from the "Cut Bridge",
{more B#%Ség%y llew Town Cut Brigge).

In old times some of the white people had their family grave
yards on their own plantations, most of them very near their
dwellings, {(Why?). wor instance the old 3cott burial ground at
Orange Grove owned formerly by Mr, Joseph B, Hinson; also the
Stiles grave yd. at Stileds Point owned Ly his son Mr Wm.J, ..zl
Hinsgon; another is the Harvey Burial ground on the place owned
fornerl; wy Rev. Stiles Mellichamp; another is the Simpson g.yard

- . on Mr_ eross—¥eys Royall's place*®
' Trre negroes always buried their dead on the plantations of
their masters but in.a separate enclosure, they are still permitted
to do 50 by the white men in 1888A,D,

Soae of the planters employed clergymen to preach to their
slaveg on the plantations, but many of them worshiped with their
masters at the churches, there being then no separate churches
for the black., Since the war they have built five churchszs of J—
ti.eir own of different denominations. have their own ministers and
seldom or never attend their former masters' churches. .

It may be well to mention that before the war of 1861 that in
addition to the churches up in the Island, the Presbyterians had a
church at Fort Johnson and the Episcopalians a chapel at the same
place, where worship was held during the swummer months for them-

- selves as well as their negro slaves.

Ths whites all belonged to an Agricultural Society which
tended to advance that art on their plantationg. There was a pub-.. -/ ,
lic library situated near the pree School Home for white chllqren,é:f%f@~;
but it was destroyed in the war 12.65. The pree School for wvhite . «&év
children was prosperously kept by Mr. Baldwin and afterwards by .
John Edward Rivers Esq. who became a lawyer at the Charleston bar
Rev. S}iles Mellichamp took it fiom 1845 to 1851. Then the Rev.

Thos. @¢.@irardeau, who was succeeded by Mr, Joseph Lee of npdisto

Island: Since the war it has been under the direction of iliss

Jacobs and Miss preer.® There are¢.now (1883 A,D,) three (3) free

schoold for blacks, one a2t the ithree Trees > ¢ ¥ , another at ——
Socisty Corner and a third at New Town Cut Bridge.

During the early summer of 1862 the James Islanders were
ordered by Gen'l., Pemberton or Gen'l. Beauregard who ever was the
confederate commander at that time, to vacate their plantations
and {ind homes in the up country, for the /negro slaves were known
to go to the ememy ( The United States Fleet) at the bar and carry
news to our detriment. All were compelled\to go and carry their
slaves with them; some went to Orangeburg:. Dist. others to Barn-
well District and to Williston and Chester Distiret. The Island
was put under mapytial law and thousands of @onfederate soldiers
garrisoned it doing great damage to buildings dnd other property
in the mogt wentopn manner; only six plantatfions houses were left
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after the war and turee- at Secessionville as has been already .. -
stated. All public buildings too, churches, Club houses, Pree !
School for whites and the publie library, all had disappeared under
the ruthless hand ¢f war, at Fort Johnson not a vestige of a

ho“se was to be seen, but this last was done by the Confedarate
Ingineers to make room for the fire of guns.

All of the young men enlisted on the side of Southern Liberty
in the war of 1861, with but a few exceptions who remained inact-
ive. As far as can be remembered the following are the names of
those who joined the Provisional Army of the Confederate States,

necessarily incomplete, o y /AR N A
w”qu/a;4¢¢¢;_1,zmkigxnhcmzdﬁyamﬁ}u~¢%?A-,C;/¥’z““¢4&“JL“dﬂgﬁ 5.e. %

W.A.Clark, Signal corps. Stiles M, Hinson, 7th. S,¢,Caval

My, : . ry, killed in Virginia.

thoe~ <, Hinson, 7th. S.C.gavalry, promoted to Leut,.

Campbell Holmes, killed in Va.

Stirling Lebby, Capt. of the Privateer Sally and Blockade Runner
Hattie.

Dr, Rob't, Lebby, Surg. Gen. Talligferro's staff. Hinson-

Walker Lebby ,“3di"’0wned in Badockade runner Cicile.,-parricd Sarah;-

Paul Lockwood, killed in Va. Jeasel Seced lioa

EdvardlLegareé, signsl corps. : N -
.John C. Minott, 1lst. regular infantryleut. wounded iﬁ\Bentonville,nc. \
W,W.McLeod, Charlestonft, pragoons, dicd ~~ Lerlic.

Dr, J.H.uelliichamp, Surg. on Gen. Drawton's staff at battle of
) Port Royal.
E,H.Mellichamp, Enginecr copps, captured at Ft. McAllister, Ga..
g © died fmprimom¥Almira N.Y. it fuim fwe
Jos. M.Mellichamp, 25th. S, ¢ infantry, cantured at Ft. Fisher, , .
died Arrprisa, Jhot Lokt kit fotnmr
™ WeSeMellichamp, 27th. S.C,Infantry, died in hespital in Charleston
S.C. from exposure on the walls of Ft, Sumter. sc
St.lo. E.Mellichamp, Washington Artillery, served on the coast efSC.
Stiles Mellichamp, signal corps,QMV&rcazﬁ%%a§”7yﬁw~¢,GmwwvwfJ%%%«fﬁ»
R,E.Mellichamp, St. S.C. Seige Train,f, 4. . g.ﬂ-mw,wa |
W.Lawton Mikell, 7th., S,.C.cavalry. Poapslon - L1025 8 00
‘James Peronnean Royal, 2nd. S.C. Inftry. killed in Va, BM bbby s €3
Rowt-:ROIFTing Rivers, 2nd. S.C.Infantry, killed in the west.
Elias/Rivers, promoted to captain. Constant Rivers, lst, Reg. Inrtry,é
7 Wm. B.Seabrook, Benbow's Reg't., Evan's Brigade. ’§rg?30¢aég:f ”
Oéﬁm Seabrook, "2nd.- S.C.Infantry, killed im Va. w20 ¢ adin, AL RN
73 After the war of 1861 closed and slavery was abblished, the
ill effects of which will show itself for genereations to come, a
few brave spirits came back to the Island amid the turbulant negroes
and started the planting of Sea Island Cotton, prominent among them

‘ may be named WM.J.Hinson,Esq.,Capt. E.L.Rivers,capg.wE;[lgi.glzrk%gr.

| W.A.Clark,Wm.B.SeabrookEsq., Lawton-Eeq., Mr,., J, & others.

| {7 Jgs. B. Hinson the next year,” "all ‘who a§¥ﬁ%€o 15hosed ¥of

their land had returned. At first they rcalized .great profit but
later they.had;yaried gsuccess. At the present time they have learned
to make their own hay fram e¢rab grass and Xaise grain (oats & courn)
as well as lerd, milk &s. which »puts them in comfort.
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The fulure looks uncgriain. Trade and farmi
nolitics degraded and the war of races imminent. ne depressed,
‘ It 1s to be hoped that Providence will dispell thess elouds,
imaginary or otherwise, and that a permanent prosperity and
perfect confidence will come to the Garden spot of the South
the gsea Islands of South Carolina and georgia, ’

taek—of R.E My 188F. 8 Amens

Notes.
*Only a few bags at that price in 1865 and 69. wW,.S,H.

'Steqt's Point was occupied as a camp of instruetion in
1812 by the Ancient Rattalion of Charleston Artillery‘ that sgerved

. in tge war of the Revolution 1776. page 206. Johnson's Reminiscenc
GB, v 00

*At McL=od's also ' S ;é
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, Although this history has been copied to gratify his
own interest in the historic region described, the undersigned
hopes thot the mimeograph reprints may reach those former members
of the confederate army ( some of them also present or past
residents of James Island) who so courteously and effectively
facilitated his topographic inquiries March 9-12th., 1895,

Should this be read by any who were engaged in the action at
River's causeway on James Island, at daybreak, July2, 1864, when
true courage was abundantly displayed on both sides under unex-
pected and trying conditions, they will confer a favor by com-
minicating with Burt G. Wilder, M.D.,, formerly Surgeon of the
55th. Mass. Vol. Infantry.

Cornell University, Ithace, N,Y,

June 12, 1895,




